
29 January 2020

NOTICE OF MEETING

POLICY AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL
will meet on

Thursday, 6 February 2020
beginning at

6:45 pm
on the

Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Richard Gomer (Chair)
Councillor Malcolm Cross (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Janice Asman
Councillor Alan Broadhurst
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey
Councillor Jephthe Doguie
Councillor James Duguid
Councillor Judith Grajewski
Councillor Tim Groves
Councillor Lucy Jurd
Councillor David Pragnell
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne
Councillor Gin Tidridge

CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader

Staff Contacts: Claire Brown, Case Management Officer; Tel: 023 8068 8498; 
Email: claire.brown@eastleigh.gov.uk

Natalie Wigman, Corporate Director Tel: 023 8068 8405 
Email: natalie.wigman@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Head of Performance and Governance

____________________________________________________________________

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in 

other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and other 
languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above.

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

1

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and  
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies    

2. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes.

3. Minutes     

The Minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2020 will be tabled at this meeting.

4. Public Participation    

5. Chair's Report    

6. General Fund Revenue Budget 2020/21 and Performance Monitoring to 31 
December 2019    (Pages 3 - 56)

7. Cabinet Forward Plan    (Pages 57 - 62)

8. Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme    (Pages 63 - 66)

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  -

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 12 March 2020 at 6:45 pm

on the Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh SO50 
9YN

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


POLICY & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY PANEL

Thursday 6 February 2020

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2020/21 AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2019

Report of the Chief Financial Officer

It is recommended that the Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel 
consider the Budget report and performance monitoring information and 
make recommendations to Cabinet as appropriate.

Summary

 In October 2019 Council approved the Medium Term Financial Plan that 
provides the background for the preparation of the Revised Budget for 
2019/20 and Budget for 2020/2.

 The Budget process underpins the delivery of the Council’s Strategic 
Priorities. It is compiled alongside the Financial and Performance 
Monitoring information to 31 December 2019.

 Taking account of the Finance Settlement from the Government, and 
allowing for a 0.3% Council Tax increase in 2020/21, the Draft Budget 
presented is a balanced Budget, which sets the Council’s net Budget 
requirement in 2020/21 at £10,372,620.

 Cabinet is required to make recommendations to Council 
(20 February 2020) on the Budget, the level of the Council’s element of the 
Council Tax and related matters.  

 A Draft Budget Book incorporating these recommendations will be 
available on the Intranet prior to Council on 20 February 2020.  A paper 
copy will be available to Councillors on request.

Statutory Power

Section 151 Local Government Act 1972
Local Government Finance Act 1992
Local Government Act 2003 (Part 2- Financial Administration)

3

Agenda Item 6



Introduction

1. All Councillors are invited to this meeting of the Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Panel to allow the opportunity to speak and ask questions on the 
budget in advance of the appended report being presented to Cabinet and 
then Council on 20 February 2020.

2. The Cabinet report (Appendix 1) details the draft budget for 2020/21, financial 
monitoring information to 31 December 2019 and summary performance 
information to end December 2019.  

3. The Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel also has the opportunity to review 
more detailed service performance information as detailed in appendix B.

Budget and Financial information

4. Councillors are asked to review the draft budget and take the opportunity to 
ask questions on how the budget is formulated.  All detail to facilitate this 
debate is contained within Appendix 1.  The draft budget presented is based 
on the best information available and importantly sets a balanced budget for 
2019/20 and 2020/21.

5. The financial monitoring to 31 December 2019 has shown few variances to 
those reported as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan approved by 
Council in October 2019.  Any variances have been included within the draft 
budget figures within the report.

Performance Monitoring

6. Appendix B to this report considers the performance monitoring information 
for services.  This shows direction of travel for services but is an emerging 
picture which will need more time to develop so that trends can be usefully 
identified.

7. Councillors will note that the format of the reporting continues to be refined in 
order to enable more effective interpretation of the data.  Each set of service 
data is accompanied by commentary from the service lead to explain the 
performance.

8. There are no specific performance issues to draw to the attention of 
Councillors.

Conclusion

9. Policy and Performance Scrutiny are asked to review the attached Cabinet 
budget report detailing the draft budget for 2020/21 (Appendix 1) and make 
recommendations to Cabinet.

10. Furthermore, Councillors are asked to note the performance information 

4



contained within appendix 2 and make recommendations as appropriate.

SARAH KING

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15 January 2020
Contact Officers: Sarah King 
Tel No: (023 8068 8011)
E-Mail: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk

Appendices Attached:  2

Appendix 1 – General Revenue Budget 2020/21 Report
Appendix 2 – Performance Monitoring to 31 December 2019

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: -

None

5

mailto:sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 
 

Tuesday 18 February 2020 
 

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2020/21 AND 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING TO 31 DECEMBER 2019 

 
Report of the Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet:  

 
(1) recommend Council approve the revised Budget for 2019/20 (para 

12) which incorporates pressures and efficiencies identified as 
part of the Financial and Performance Monitoring to 31 December 
2019 and the Medium Term Financial Plan; 

 
(2) recommend Council set the net revenue Budget requirement for 

2020/21 at £10,372,620 and note the impact on the Council’s 
General Fund Balance (para 12); 

 
(3) recommend Council note the Local Government Finance 

settlement for 2020/21 (paras 15-17); 
 
(4) recommend Council approve budget growth of £481,000 in 

2019/20 and £675,000 in 2020/21 (paras 26-27 & Appendices B&C); 
 
(5) recommend Council increase the Basic Council Tax for Eastleigh 

Borough Council by 0.3% (1% below CPI) for 2020/21 (para 18); 
 

(6) recommend Council approve the Special Expenses for Parished 
and Non-Parished areas (paras 22-25) and 
 

(7) note the performance information to 31 December 2019 contained 
within this report (Appendix G).   

 
 
 
Summary 
 
 In October 2019 Council approved the Medium Term Financial Plan that 

provides the background for the preparation of the Revised Budget for 
2019/20 and Budget for 2020/2. 

 
 The Budget process underpins the delivery of the Council’s Strategic 

Priorities. It is compiled alongside the Financial and Performance 
Monitoring information to 31 December 2019. 

 
 

7



 Taking account of the Finance Settlement from the Government, and 
allowing for a 0.3% Council Tax increase in 2020/21, the Draft Budget 
presented is a balanced Budget, which sets the Council’s net Budget 
requirement in 2020/21 at £10,372,620. 

 
 Cabinet is required to make recommendations to Council 

(20 February 2020) on the Budget, the level of the Council’s element of 
the Council Tax and related matters.   

 
 A Draft Budget Book incorporating these recommendations will be 

available on the Intranet prior to Council on 20 February 2020.  A paper 
copy will be available to Councillors on request. 

 
Statutory Power 
 
Section 151 Local Government Act 1972 
Local Government Finance Act 1992 
Local Government Act 2003 (Part 2- Financial Administration) 
 

 
Strategic Implications 
 

1. The Budget underpins the Council’s ability to meet Strategic Priorities 
set out in the Corporate Plan 2015-2025.  The Budget aligns the 
appropriate level of resource that enables services and projects to be 
delivered so that there is a direct impact on residents.  The Budget is a 
vital management mechanism to ensure financial sustainability of the 
Council, fulfilment of statutory obligations, financial prudence and 
compliance.   
 
Introduction 

 
2. The process of preparing the Revised Budget for 2019/20 and the 

Budget for 2020/21 began in October 2019 based on the approved 
Medium Term Financial Plan.   
 

3. Cabinet approved Corporate Fees and Charges in November 2019.  
Area Committees have set fees and charges for local amenities, 
including car parks as part of their devolved responsibility.   

 
4. The financial and delivery performance for each service is monitored 

regularly with the forecasting of financial performance for the year and 
also the reporting against service performance indicators to determine 
service and corporate success.  Where this performance information 
suggests a financial impact this has been reflected within the proposed 
budget. 
 

5. The Budget report is considered by the Policy and Performance 
Scrutiny Panel on 6 February 2020.  All Councillors are invited to this 
meeting and are given the opportunity to speak and to ask questions. 

 
 

8



 
Current Financial Position 
 

6. As Councillors will be aware, despite the major cuts in Central 
Government funding, the overall financial position of the Council 
continues to be very strong as demonstrated in the table in paragraph 
12.  Much of this is due to prudent financial management and planning 
where decisions have been taken that reflect a business case that 
offers long term stability rather than short term financial gain.  
 

7. The financial and performance monitoring for the third quarter shows 
little variation to predicted income and expenditure previously reported 
in the Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

8. The Council continues to use Prudential Borrowing to purchase assets 
and contribute to housing schemes in line with the Capital Strategy.  
This results in a net surplus in excess of £12M for the Council and 
enables the Borough to benefit from retention and creation of 
employment alongside the accelerated supply of affordable and 
accessible housing.  This is discussed in further detail in paragraphs 36 
– 44. 
 

9. Aside from the General Fund Reserve, there are a number of 
earmarked reserves maintained by the Council to enable the financing 
of specific costs.  These are discussed in more detail in para 14.  
These reserves place the Council in a strong financial position to 
mitigate any emerging costs such as those arising from future changes 
in the property market or interest rate movements.  

 
Net Revenue Budget 
 

10. The 2020/21 Budget has been prepared on the following basis: 
 

(i) The Council has committed to increase Council Tax by 1% less 
than inflation (CPI) prevailing at 31 December in the preceding 
year (1.3% at December 2019) and therefore the proposed 
increase is 0.3%.     

 
(ii) In accordance with the Medium Term Financial Plan, the General 

Fund Reserve is maintained at the minimum of £1M.  For 2020/21 
the balance is forecast to be £1,011,000. 

 
(iii) The Budget makes provision for an estimated annual pay award 

of 2% for the remainder of the Financial Plan. 
 

(iv) Fees and Charges are set to achieve on average a minimum 3% 
yield increase in 2020/21. 

 
11. In line with the Medium Term Financial Plan, Budget pressures have 

been contained within existing budgets wherever possible.  The 
pressures that need approval from Cabinet are discussed in 
paragraphs 26-27. (Recommendation 4). 

9



 
12. The Original and Revised Budgets for 2019/20 and the Budget for 

2020/21 are summarised in the following table.  Further detail is shown 
in Appendix A. 

 
 

General Fund Summary 
 2019/20 

Original 
£’000 

2019/20 
Revised 

£’000 

2020/21 
Budget 
£’000 

 
Total Net Expenditure 

 
 10,211 

 
 10,790 

 
 10,420 

Transfer (from)/to Balances  (166)  (937)  (47) 

Net General Fund Requirement  10,045  9,853  10,373 

General Fund Balance    

Opening Balance 1 April  (1,192)  (1,995)  (1,058) 

Transfer from Balances  166  937    47 

Closing Balance 31 March  (1,026)  (1,058)  (1,011) 
 
 

13. The Budget shows the Council in a healthy financial position with 
General Fund Reserves being maintained meeting the minimum 
requirement of £1M.   

 
14. A review of earmarked reserves has been undertaken to confirm that 

the current and forecast levels are adequate to address all known 
potential liabilities. This includes the significant interest and property 
reserves.  A summary of reserves, showing movements year on year 
where anticipated, is tabled below: 

 
 2019/20

£000
2020/21

£000
Property 2,845 3,569
Capital and Developers Contributions 3,288 3,288
Local Areas 722 722
Service Specific 4,103 4,199
Interest 6,840 9,937
Total earmarked reserves 17,798 21,715

 
 
 
 

 Local Government Finance Settlement 
 

15. Due to continued financial constraints from Central Government, 
Cabinet will note that the Revenue Support Grant reduced to zero from 
2019/20.  In 2007/08 this same funding was £7.4M, which equates to 
approximately £10M at today’s prices.  This reflects the real and 
sustained reduction in Central Government funding of Local 
Government over the past 10 years.  It is worth noting that the 

10



Government pledge was that the reduction in Revenue Support Grant 
would be offset by councils retaining 100% of Business Rate income in 
the future although this has still not been introduced. 

 
16. The Business Rates Retention Scheme was introduced in 2013/14 and 

in early years the Council’s budgeted funding was set at the minimum 
(safety net) the Council is able to retain.  Since 2015/16 the income 
from Business Rates has exceeded the minimum safety net level and 
the Council is receiving the financial benefit of local business growth it 
has generated.  However the Government applies a levy to income in 
excess of the base funding level.  The Council also receives Section 31 
Grant income from Government which is related to the loss of income 
for the Council from the granting of additional reliefs.  It is assumed that 
this current grant income will only continue until the “resetting” of 
Business Rate income which has been further delayed until 2021/22.   
 

17. In 2021/22 the Government intends to reset the base income from 
Business Rates nationally moving to three yearly valuations from 2021.  
For Eastleigh, it is anticipated that this will remove any growth to date 
and the Council will revert to the safety net position, requiring top up 
funding from Central Government.  This reset will have a significant 
negative impact on the Council’s finances and will erode the benefit we 
have received over recent years with increasing Business Rate income.  
The potential impact on the Council (based on current estimates from 
our advisors) is tabled below:  

 
 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Net NDR income 5,164 5,469 2,662 2,715
G’ment (levy)/Top-Up (1,322) (1,322) 0 0
Net Income 3,842 4,147 2,662 2,715
  

 
Council Tax 
 

18. The actual Council Tax paid by an individual is a combination of:  
 

 Hampshire County Council Precept  
 Police and Crime Commissioner for Hampshire Precept 
 The Fire and Rescue Authority Precept   
 Eastleigh Borough Council (adjusted for Special Expenses - see 

paras 22 and 25) 
 Parish/Town Council Precept (in the parished areas) 

 
 

 
19. The average Band D Borough Council element of the 

Council Tax has been set at an increase of 0.3% for 2020/21 which is 
1% below inflation (December 2019 CPI).  If the Council were to 
increase Council Tax by CPI rather than 1% below, then the additional 
yield to the Council in 2020/21 would be approximately £50,000.  
 

20. The total average Band D Council Tax figure demonstrates a £2.84 

11



increase year on year.  This is due to the 0.3% basic tax increase 
coupled with a review of Special Expenses which includes an increase 
to reflect enhanced services in some areas.  The Council is committed 
to reducing the impact of Council Tax on residents and over the past 17 
years the year on year increase has been below inflation.  This has led 
to the Council Tax being more than 30% lower than if it had gone up in-
line with inflation. 
 

21. Hampshire County Council, Police & Crime Commissioner for 
Hampshire and Hampshire Fire & Rescue Authority precepts are not 
yet known and are not therefore included in the figures in this report.  
They will be incorporated in the Council Tax calculation reported to 
Council on 20 February 2020. 
 
Special Expenses 
  

22. Special Expenses are an element of the Council Tax charge.  They are 
a mechanism for identifying, where possible, services specific to a 
geographic area and reflecting the relevant costs to the Council Tax 
payer within that area where that service is performed by a Local 
Council in one or more areas but only in part or not at all in others.  
This enables more accurate bills for residents who are then paying for 
services specific to their geographic area where possible. 
 

23. During the Budget process, work has been carried out to review 
services allocated as Special Expenses.  Additional area specific 
services proposed to be included as special expensed items from 
2020/21 are listed below.  Where costs for these services have 
previously been included within the Basic Council Tax applicable to all 
hereditaments, there is now a decrease in the Basic Council Tax of 1% 
whilst there is a compensating increase in the Special Expense 
element of Council Tax based on geographical area. 

 
 

Area Service
Eastleigh Local Area Manager support (as no parish)
 Cable Works
 Energy Youth Centre
 Town Centre Maintenance
 
Chandler’s Ford, 
Hiltingbury & Velmore

Hiltingbury Lakes 
Project Freespace

 
Hamble Hamble Library
 
All Community Safety
All Tree Management
All Tree Maintenance

 
 
24. The services which were already included in the base Council Tax are 

listed in the table below: 
 

12



 
Service Cost (£)

Cable Works 27,320
Energy Youth Centre 14,480
Town Centre Maintenance 11,380
 
Total 53,180

 
 

25. The Special Expenses’ budgets for 2020/21 are outlined below: 
 

Expenditure relating to the Non-Parished Area
 2020/21
  

£
Allotments 55,837
 
Bowls Facilities 3,888
  
Bus Shelters 8,750
 
Children's Play Areas 60,468
 
Cemeteries 58,913
 
LAM Support 17,074
 
Christmas Lighting 27,930
 
Playing Fields 85,304
 
Public Toilets 41,296
 
Christmas Event 6,997
 
Community Safety 34,960
 
Cable Works 27,319
 
Countryside Sites 35,762
 
Open Spaces, Parks & Recreation Grounds 192,844
 
Trees Maintenance 
 

 
35,032

Energy Centre 14,479
 
Town Centre Maintenance 11,382
 
 718,235

  
 
 
 

13



 
Special Expenses in the Parished Areas
 2020/21
 £
 
Allbrook 8,898
 
Bishopstoke 83,223
 
Botley 22,977
 
Bursledon 57,507
 
Chandler’s Ford 153,121
 
Fair Oak & Horton Heath 55,318
 
Hamble-le-Rice 42,904
 
Hedge End 100,328
 
Hound 85,023
 
West End 131,538
 
Special Expenses in the Parished Areas  740,837
 
Notional Grant  (177,261)
 
Special Expenses in the Non Parished Areas          718,235
 
Total Special Expenses  1,281,811

 
 
 Service Issues 
 
26. The Budget process has been carried out in parallel to the quarterly 

Financial and Performance Monitoring process to 31 December 2019.  
This allows the most current financial information to be used to inform 
the Budget and identifies pressures and emerging efficiencies.  
Appendices B and C provide a reconciliation of the year on year Budget 
movements along with explanations for each.  A summary 
reconciliation is as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 
 Original 

2019/20 
to 

Revised 
2019/20 

Original 
2019/20 

to 
Original 
2020/21

 £000 £000
  
Original Transfer From General Fund 166 166
Approvals during the year 438 0
Services Pressures (Rec 4) 481 675
Service Efficiencies (914) (2,718)
Income & Expenditure Account 766 1,020
Staffing & Inflation Costs 0 904
Revised From General Fund 937 47

 
27. The Draft Budget proposed within this report is inclusive of the items in 

the above table.  All items have been discussed with Portfolio Leads 
and the following paragraphs provide summary information, from 
Service Leads on the reasons for the Budget variances (Appendix C0.   
 
Efficiencies 

 
28. A new Continuous Improvement Strategy was launched as part of the 

recent Medium Term Financial Plan, setting an efficiency target of 
£2.5M to be saved by 2023/24.  This Strategy will have three key focus 
areas: 

 Commercial Development 
 Service Improvement 
 Strategic Re-alignment 

 
29. The Council is starting from a strong commercial position and as such 

seeks to strengthen this position by running a process to encourage 
managers to actively look at more effective ways of working.  This will 
include developing business cases to seek to achieve the efficiency 
target whilst maintaining provision of services. 

 
30. Engagement with managers in the formulation of the detail supporting 

the Continuous Improvement Strategy has begun as part of this Budget 
process with the initial findings being reported to Portfolio Leads in May 
2020.  The next stage will seek to prioritise target areas and improve 
the process of Strategic Re-alignment.  The use of comprehensive 
performance indicators will be invaluable in identifying opportunities for 
efficiencies.  

 
Performance Monitoring 

 
31. The Performance Monitoring process looks at areas aside from 

financial performance.  The Council is developing a comprehensive set 
of performance indicators to assist managers in running their services.  
There are also key performance indicators which will be reported 
quarterly to Councillors.  The suite of indicators is regularly refined in 

15



line with Strategic Priorities and service need. 
 

32. The performance information to 31 December 2019, with explanatory 
commentary, is attached as appendix G to this report.  There are no 
significant areas to specifically bring to the attention of Councillors.   

 
Community Investment Programme 

 
33. The Council continues with its successful Community Investment 

Programme (CIP) from strategic investment delivering tangible 
outcomes, such as increased and improved employment space, more 
housing, improved awareness of climate issues to aid the Climate and 
Environmental Emergency, whilst delivering increased revenue income 
to the Council. A summary of the programme as at December 2019 is 
shown at Appendix D and the detail of the full programme can be found 
in the Capital Strategy elsewhere on the Cabinet Agenda.   
 

34. The CIP has a rolling budget of £55.9M for 2019/20.  The budget has 
reduced by £20.8M since originally set which is primarily due to 
slippage on schemes that are no longer due to complete in 2019/20 
including Upper Northam Road, Romsey Road and some works on the 
former Civic Site.  There has also been re-profiling of the Horton Heath 
Scheme, to better reflect the enhanced self-delivery proposals for the 
site. 

 
35. As at the end of December 2019 £22.8M has been spent, representing 

41% of the total budget. The progress of the CIP schemes are reported 
as part of the highlight reports completed by Project Managers monthly, 
and reported back to the relevant Boards.  As with revenue budgets, 
Project Managers are asked to identify forecast spend for the year in 
order that the total CIP budgets can be monitored effectively and also 
profiled into the most appropriate financial year.  This is an iterative 
process, with adjustments to budgets between financial years being 
made as and when reported to the relevant boards. 
 
Investment/Borrowing 
 

36. As a net borrower, the Council Budget is sensitive to interest rate 
movements.  Net borrowing levels are anticipated to be £526M by the 
end of 2020/21.  The impact on the Council’s Investment/Borrowing 
Portfolio of the current and projected interest rates is summarised in the 
following table: 

16



37. Since August 2018 the Bank of England Base Rate has been 0.75% 
which has continued a period of very low and stable for interest rates 
from which the Council is benefitting.  The Council benefits annually 
from borrowing at a blend of short term and long term interest rates and 
in addition the budget for short term rates is prudently based on a 
longer term increasing forecast. 
 

38. The Council’s Treasury Management Advisors, Arlingclose, are 
currently forecasting no change in the interest rate with their estimates 
running to March 2023.  The Council continues to hold an interest rate 
reserve to protect against any unforeseen interest rate increases.  
 

39. The Council’s Property Portfolio provides an annual net surplus of 
£12M.  When evaluating property purchases, in line with the Capital 
Strategy, all known and anticipated costs are included within a robust 
internal financial assessment which considers all related costs including 
the cost of prudential borrowing.  It is important to note that all 
purchases are assessed at the long term borrowing rate and include 
provisions for both voids and maintenance costs. 
 

40. An indication of the financial health of the Council can be seen in the 
Prudential Indicators which are reported to Cabinet throughout the 
year.  One indicator demonstrates the level that an average individual 
Council Tax bill would need to increase by if the Council did not receive 
income from investments and instead needed to generate this through 
Council Tax income this, figure is in excess of £200.  The Council 
would not be able to increase the tax by this sum and therefore would 
need to look at other ways to generate income, or more likely, would 
need to cut services.  Note that the proposed average Band D Council 
Tax figure for 2020/21 is £132.36. 

 
41. In accordance with the recommendations from Arlingclose, and as 

approved by the Treasury Management Member Review Group, the 
intention is to continue borrowing short-term.  The Budget includes the 
cost of the £50M long-term loan taken from Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB) in April 2017 at a fixed rate of 2.31% and the further £300M 
taken in April 2019 at an average fixed rate of 1.9%.  It is important to 
note that whilst the interest payable figures included in the Budget 
increase significantly over the period, this is offset by income.  Any 
purchase made by borrowing is assessed at the long term rate with the 
revenue benefit being set aside in a reserve. 

 
 

 
 

Original
2019/20 

 
Revised
2019/20 

 
Budget 
2020/21 

 
Budget 
2021/22 

 
Budget 
2022/23 

 
Budget 
2023/24 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
    
Avg Borrowing 
Rate 

0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.75% 0.88% 1.38% 

Interest Payable 4,567 6,000 5,531 5,532 5,812 6,720 

    

17



 
42. The Capital Investment and Treasury Management Strategy which 

discusses the Borrowing and Investment Strategy in more detail is 
considered elsewhere on this Cabinet Agenda. 

 
43. Although a net borrower, the Council does receive interest income and 

this is estimated in the table below: 

 
44. A large proportion of this interest income is derived from housing loans 

made to Aspect Eastleigh sponsored housing schemes such as 
Pembers Hill.  This income is only reflected within budget projections 
when there is a high level of certainty.  Any interest generated by future 
schemes will only be added once a full business case has been 
approved.  As timings of future income streams are not known, 
investment income falls to a lower level in future years. 
 
New Homes Bonus and Housing Initiatives 

 
45. As Cabinet will recall, the Council uses the New Homes Bonus (NHB) 

Grant to fund capital projects and, unlike many councils, does not rely 
on this income to fund ongoing revenue costs.  The scheme, when 
initially launched, committed to funding in 6 year tranches.  This 
reduced initially to 5 years in 2017/18 and then down to 4 years from 
2018/19.  From 2020/21 allocations for the year will be one off and not 
attract any legacy payments.   
 

46. The future allocation of Government funding for housing is yet to be 
announced although it is anticipated that there will be incentives for 
councils who are accelerating housing delivery.  The ministerial 
statement announced a Spring 2020 consultation on the future of the 
scheme which is likely to move “to a new, more targeted approach that 
rewards local authorities where they are ambitious in delivering the 
homes we need”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Original
2019/20 

 
Revised
2019/20

 
Budget 
2020/21

 
Budget 
2021/22

 
Budget 
2022/23 

 
Budget 
2023/24 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
    
Investment 
Interest (3,406) (3,450) (3,271) (1,827) (586) (511) 
    

18



 
47. The current allocation of grant across specific schemes is detailed in 

the table below: 
 

Completed £'000 
Woodside Avenue & Hatch Farm 324 
Bursledon GP Surgery 3,797 
Lakeside Country Park 1,000 
Hiltingbury Pavillion & Tennis Courts 440 
Fleming Park Leisure Centre 3,752 
Hamble Library 200 

IVCP Highwood Barn 120 
New Homes Review 28  

9,661 
  
Scheme Underway  
Ramalley Countryside 10 
Hiltingbury Lakes 145 
Fryern Pavillion 300 
Ramally Guides/Scout HQ 230 
Romsey Road Community Facilities 200 
Wildern Leisure Centre pool roof 915 
Town Centre Housing Sites 960 

2,760 

Scheme Approved 
Bishopstoke Community Facilities 1,000 
Bishopstoke Road Infrastructure 900 
Hedge End/Horton Heath Cycle Route 40 
St Johns Phase 2 & 3 700  

2,640   

Total 15,061 

  
 

48. In addition to the above a further £5.8M is earmarked for affordable 
housing.   
 

49. The Council’s involvement in housing schemes, both through the 
investment of New Homes Bonus and the use of associated 
companies, has enabled the acceleration of housing supply within the 
Borough.  This is a continuing aspiration and whilst delivering on the 
Corporate Plan Priorities of increasing provision and diversity of 
housing mix throughout the Borough this also delivers net revenue 
income for the Council which is included within the Budget. 
 
 
 
 

19



Consultation 
 

50. The Council is required to consult with local businesses on the General 
Fund Revenue Budget although the actual level of Business Rates 
(National Non-Domestic Rates - NNDR) is set by Central Government.  
Letters have been sent (example at Appendix E) offering consultation 
to the Hampshire Chamber of Commerce, the Federation of Small 
Businesses and the Business Improvement District (BID).  Any 
comments received before the Cabinet meeting will be reported 
verbally. 

 
51. In preparing this Budget, Service Managers also consult with key 

partners to ensure that the requirements of maintaining a successful 
partnership are considered as part of the Budget deliberations. 

 
Risk Management 

 
52. The Budget preparation has a number of different risks ranging from 

strategic to operational.  A risk assessment that identifies the key risks 
and evaluates both impact and likelihood is attached in Appendix F. 
 
Equality & Diversity Implications 
 

53. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report as the 
decision does not relate to eliminating discrimination, advancing 
equality of opportunity, or fostering good relations between different 
people.  An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 
 

54. Any service changes identified in this report will have an Impact 
Assessment completed as required.   
 
Chief Financial Officer’s Statement 
 

55. In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003 
the Council’s Chief Financial Officer, in recommending this Budget to 
Cabinet for approval, endorses it as being sound and robust and 
acknowledges that balances are being maintained at an adequate level 
for 2019/20 and 2020/21 which is continuing into the future.  This 
recognises the uncertainty created by the cuts in public sector funding 
and the current economic climate.  

 
56. The Council’s current financial position both now and looking to the 

future is healthy.  This demonstrates the success of its Efficiency 
Strategy including the Service Redesign process which transformed the 
Council’s way of working and delivered significant savings.  This 
process has set a platform for the Council to continue to develop more 
efficient ways to provide services to customers whilst maintaining 
service provision.  The Budget reflects the success of the prudent 
financial and risk management approach adopted within the Council. 
Another significant factor when considering the Budget is to look at the 
success of the Asset Management Plan in acquiring assets which 
generate a net surplus to the Council revenue account each year.   

20



 
57. However, there is a great deal of uncertainty regarding the future in 

terms of the general economy, the impact of the exit from the European 
Union, emerging legislation and areas specific to Local Government 
such as changes to the Business Rates Scheme.  It is essential that 
the Council continues to develop more efficient ways of working and 
uses strategy to focus resources to deliver the most effective services 
to deliver the aims of the Corporate Plan.     

 
58. This assessment is supported by the Chief Executive. 
 

Conclusion 
 

59. The Budget presented in this report is based on the best information 
available and sets a balanced Budget for 2019/20 and 2020/21.  
 

60. This represents a significant achievement and a positive prospect for 
the Council during a period when it has been undergoing the most 
radical transformation in 20 years.  At the same time there is significant 
external uncertainty and challenge for the Borough’s businesses and 
residents.  The Council continues to deliver against Strategic Priorities 
set out in the Corporate Plan 2015-2025; examples include improved 
recycling rates, improvements in air quality, increased physical activity 
of residents, high quality arts and culture provision,  resilient Town and 
Local Centres and an ambitious programme of infrastructure, 
regeneration and housing projects. 
 

61. The 2020/21 Budget shows the Council’s General Fund Reserve above 
the minimum of 10% of the Councils Net General Fund Requirement 
and this is forecast to continue through the duration of the Medium 
Term Financial Plan.  Although in a healthy financial position, the 
Council will continue to review its efficiency approach through the 
implementation of the Continuous Improvement Strategy. 
 

62. Cabinet is asked to consider the Draft Budget for 2020/21 and to make 
recommendations to Council at its 20 February 2020 Budget meeting. 

 
SARAH KING

Chief Financial Officer
 
 

Date:   15 January 2020 
Contact Officers:  Sarah King  
Tel No:  (023 8068 8011) 
E-Mail:   sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 
    
Appendices Attached:   7 

 
 
 
 
 

21



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 
 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information: - 

 
None 
 
 

22



APPENDIX A

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY Original Revised Budget

2019/20 2019/20 2020/21

£ £ £

Planning & Property Portfolio (2,689,780) (2,210,710) (3,565,310)

Area Committees 1,413,480 1,791,950 1,780,300

Skills & Business Portfolio 9,040 51,090 (4,050)

Environment Portfolio 4,618,380 5,117,880 5,147,430

Transport Portfolio (1,114,380) (1,151,620) (1,152,900)

Health Portfolio 1,230,080 1,876,730 1,787,950

Social Policy Portfolio 254,280 212,590 211,370

Local Area Cost Adjustment (372,120) (637,870) (637,930)

Grand Total 3,348,980 5,050,040 3,566,860

Income and Expenditure Account

Interest Payable 4,567,000 6,000,000 5,531,000

Interest Receivable (3,406,000) (3,450,000) (3,271,000)

Depreciation and Impairment (3,014,350) (4,468,040) (4,468,040)

Minimum Revenue Provision 4,691,390 4,413,000 5,143,000

Transfers to/(From) Earmarked Reserves 4,024,510 3,240,850 3,917,840

Amendments made under Statute 0 5,000 0

Total Income and Expenditure Account 6,862,550 5,740,810 6,852,800

Sub Total 10,211,530 10,790,850 10,419,660

Transfers to/(From) Balances (166,350) (937,490) (47,040)

Net General Fund Requirement 10,045,180 9,853,360 10,372,620

Funding:

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0

Non-Domestic Rates (4,034,000) (3,842,184) (4,147,014)

Council Tax (6,011,180) (6,011,180) (6,225,610)

Total Funding (10,045,180) (9,853,364) (10,372,624)

23



APPENDIX B

2019/20 2020/21 Appendix C

Para Ref

ORIGNAL TRANSFER FROM RESERVE 2019/20 166,350 166,350

Approvals During the Year

Cabinet June 2019 Pontoon Project 20,000 -

Cabinet June 2019 Borough Council Services Highways Non Agency LSVT      25,000 -

Cabinet June 2019 Traffic Regulation Order 100,000 -

Cabinet June 2019 Planning Performance Agreement       119,000 -

Cabinet June 2019 Future Service Improvements Service Delivery Case Management 5.6 FTE 149,180 - 19

Cabinet July 2019 Air Quality revenue maintenance increase 24,320 -

437,500 0

Service Pressures  (recommendation 4)

Countryside Management 61,000 - 6

Tree Maintenance 20,000 20,000 18

Tree Officer - 50,000 18

Extra Waste Round 100,000 100,000 13

Local Plan 210,000 - 14

Service Delivery CMO support - 250,000 19

Business Process Staff - 100,000 19

Ecology Officer - 50,000 20

Pollution Officer - 50,000 20

Audit Fees 20,000 20,000 24

Hiltingbury Lakes - Maintenance - 10,000 25

Hamble Library 10,000 10,000 26

Community Safety - 15,000 30

Fly tipping 60,000 - 28

481,000 675,000

Services Efficiencies

Council Tax Grant (70,520) (127,000) 17

Housing Support Benefit (80,000) - 2

Liquor Licensing (20,000) (15,000) 3

Development Management (56,000) - 4

Corporation Estates (312,000) (550,000) 15

Broker Fees (236,800) (180,800) 16

Economic Development (20,000) - 8

Support Services (61,000) - 23

Car Parking (80,000) - 5

Combined Heat & Power (60,000) - 7

Green Garden Waste (30,000) - 13

Borough council Services Highways non agency (25,000) - 9

Borough Council Services Transport Policy (37,580) - 10

Efficiency Target 200,000 (300,000) 21

Woodside - (19,000) 27

Stoneham - (1,526,000) 27

Other Service Adjustments (24,890) -

(913,790) (2,717,800)

Income & Expenditure Account 1

Interest Payable and Similar Contributions 1,433,000 964,000

Interest & Investment Income (44,000) 135,000

Interest Reserve (339,000) (202,790)

Minimum Revenue Provision (278,390) 451,610

Business Rate Income 191,820 (113,010)

Council Tax Base - (214,430)

Movement in Revenue Reserves (197,000) -

766,430 1,020,380

Staffing and Inflation Costs - 903,110 22

REVISED TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND 937,490 47,040

Note

Budget Reconciliations

*Any variance or Budget Management reported in Appendix C which is funded by income or a reserve is not shown in the table 

above as it does not impact the transfer to the General Fund figure.

*Any Budget Management item mentioned in Appendix C is noted and will receive formal approval at year-end subject to funds 

being available.

24



Budget Movement Explanations              APPENDIX C 

1. The Income and Expenditure account holds the budgets for debt costs and 
income, reserve movements and Business Rates and Council Tax income.  
There is a net growth required of £766,430 and £1.02M in 2019/20 and 
2020/21 respectively. The table in Appendix B gives the detail of this but 
predominantly this increased cost reflects the additional cost of switching 
borrowing to a fixed long term rate. This cost is reduced by a reduced transfer 
to the interest reserve and reduced debt administration costs.  
 

2. Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support is forecasting a favourable variance 
of £80,000 in 2019/20, as highlighted in the Quarter 2 Financial Monitoring.  
This is due primarily to the lower take-up of Universal Credit which means that 
the Housing Benefit caseload is currently static.  This will continue to be 
regularly monitored by the Service Lead.  The service has also looked at 
methods of recovery of outstanding Housing Benefit debt due to the 
uncertainty of recovery of these monies once the debtors transfer across to 
Universal Credit.  As a result of this proactive work the current recovery rates 
are slightly higher than initially estimated. 
 

3. The Licensing Service is forecasting a recurring saving of £20,000 for 2019/20 
and £15,000 for 2020/21.  This has been achieved by fewer calls being made 
on the chargeable advice service provided by Southampton City Council.  
 

4. The Development Management service is forecasting additional income for 
2019/20 £56,000 in excess of the budget due to a modest number of larger 
fee paying applications. 
 

5. Overall Parking Services is reporting a net favourable variance of £80,000. A 
saving of £100,000 due to Civil Enforcement Officer vacancies and more 
targeted use of resources based on a range of data, has meant that the 
impact of this has been limited to a loss of income against budget of £20,000 
across car parks and decriminalised parking.   With the requirements of the 
on-street enforcement agency agreement with Hampshire County Council and 
the increasing number of Traffic Regulation Orders which need enforcement 
throughout the Borough, it is anticipated that staff vacancies will need to be 
filled and as such income will increase accordingly to fund this.  It should be 
noted that a number of recruitment initiatives have been undertaken including 
benchmarking Terms and Conditions, regrading and use of market 
supplements to support recruitment and retention in a competitive market 
place for a role that is often challenging.  
 

6. Countryside Management - Itchen Valley and Lakeside Country Parks are 
forecasting a net unfavourable variance of £61,000 for 2019/20, as reported in 

25



the Quarter 2 Financial Monitoring.  The investment in a new, modern café 
has seen visitor numbers grow significantly which necessitated a revised 
staffing structure and procurement arrangements for the catering offer.  This 
was a steep learning curve for the Team and the projected increased income 
levels did not cover the revised structure and procurement costs.  Learning 
from this experience, a number of changes have been made to address the 
issues identified:  a professional Café Manager has now been appointed, a 
revised menu underpinned by a detailed costing framework developed, 
procurement arrangements formalised, a stable supply chain developed, the 
staffing structure amended and revised employment conditions for casual 
workers implemented.  Also of note is an increase in car parking revenue and 
the appointment of a new Country Parks Visitor Services Manager. 
 

7. Combined heat and power and renewable energy is reporting a £60,000 
saving.  This is due to a significantly improved purchase rate compared with 
the charging rate to Places Leisure.  This has not been previously identified 
due to finalising the charging rates with Places for People.   
 

8. Economic Development is reporting a saving of £20,000 due to underspends 
related to staffing vacancies.  Whilst this impacted on the delivery of some 
non-essential services, this work will be rolled forward for delivery in 2020/21.  
This will be taken as an efficiency saving for 2019/20. 

9. Borough Council Services Highways non-agency – This is reporting a 
favourable variance of £25,000. There has continued to be a rise in income 
for road closures and the budget has had a reduction in spend against 
advertising costs, resulting in a saving of £8,000. In addition there is a further 
underspend of £17,000 relating to land inspections.  This budget funds a role 
to deliver this work until June 2020, at which point the work will be complete. 
Due to a delay in the post being recruited to it has not been possible to spend 
the allocated budget in 19/20 and a Budget Management item is requested. 
 

10. Borough Council Services Transport Policy – Borough Council Services 
Transport Policy is reporting an underspend of £71,000, which comprises the 
following; 
 

 There is a £50,000 underspend, which relates to the withdrawal of a 
number of bus services that were deemed not to be viable by the bus 
operators.  Therefore there was a resultant saving for the Council as a 
consequence of not paying our share of the subsidy for that service.  In 
2020/21 the Council is looking to re-tender for services, which means 
the budget would be fully spent.  It should be noted that circa £34,000 
of this saving is a budget management request for a temporary 
member of staff to assist in the Transport and Climate Change 

26



strategies in 20/21. The additional member of staff would provide the 
extra capacity to deliver this. 
 

 £21,000 saving on the community transport (Dial-a-ride and medical 
transport) contract.  This is due to activity being lower than previous 
years, however it is anticipated that the ageing population will see 
demand for these services increase year on year. 

 
11. Land Charges is forecast to be £20,000 under budget. It should be noted that 

land charge requests are being responded to within the prescribed timeframe, 
however, there has been a decrease in the number of official searches 
compared to the previous year (April-Nov 2019 = 738, April-Nov 2018 = 869).  A 
number of private sector service providers have entered the market for the 
delivery of this service, which has impacted on the income estimate for this 
financial year.  The situation will be the subject of on-going monitoring, with the 
loss of income being funded from the Land Charges Reserve. 

 
12. Council Tax is forecasting a £29,000 overspend.  This is due to an Empty 

Homes review consultant cost, which will be funded from the New Homes 
Bonus reserves.  It should be noted that a new Debt Collection company has 
been engaged, which may have an implication on the future years Court Cost 
income target; any shortfall will be funded from the Collection Fund surplus.  As 
a result of engaging the new company, it is anticipated that collection rates will 
rise, with a resultant fall in income from court fees.  In the current year the 
Council Tax Team have been taking more court action in the last few months, 
therefore it is anticipated that an additional income of £20,000 will be generated, 
this will fund the potential additional provision for bad debts.     

 
13. Direct Services: There has been an introduction of an additional waste 

collection round to address the increase in demand (3,200 additional properties 
built in the last 4 years) for services, at a cost of £100,000 in 2019/20.  This 
level of growth will continue into the next financial year and will provide capacity 
to address increased demands on the service.  This forecast overspend was 
included in the financial monitoring for the second quarter and forecast as an 
ongoing pressure within the Medium Term Financial Plan.  In addition to this, 
Direct Services is reporting that garden waste income is likely to exceed the 
budget by £35,000 this year.  This is due to an increase in subscribers and a 
modest increase in the fee charged; part of this saving (approx. £5k) will be 
used to fund the capital cost of the additional garden waste bins.  Currently the 
Council has 19,237 residents (20,506 bins), compared to 18,624 customers 
(19,237 bins) from January 2019.  There has been a small reduction in the 
Trade Waste customer base and the loss of one significant contract due to on-
going contamination problems, with which the producer would not engage. 
There will also be an additional £13,000 of disposal costs associated with this 

27



service, however, it is anticipated that the Trade Waste Service income will be 
higher to meet this cost.  

 
14. Local Plan - A budget growth item of £210,000 in 19/20 is proposed.  This is 

due to further costs associated with the examination in public of the Council’s 
submitted Local Plan 2016-2036, in particular the level of technical and legal 
support being required by the Council.  Initial estimates of these costs have 
been refined during the first half of the Local Plan hearings. 

 
15. Asset Management: The Corporation Estates budget is forecast to exceed its 

income target by £312,000 in 2019/20 and £550,000 in 2020/21.  This positive 
position is the net effect of rent reviews negotiated on properties both leased in 
and leased to tenants.   

 
16. Treasury Management administration costs are forecast to be £236,800 lower 

than budgeted; this is due to the restructuring of £300M of borrowing from short 
term to long term resulting in reduced brokerage and bank charges.  This 
reduced cost will continue into 2020/21 at a saving of £180,800. 

 
17. In October 2018 Council approved the phasing out of the optional grant to 

parishes which compensated for the introduction of the Council Tax Support 
Scheme.  This was reduced by 1/3 in 2019/20 and 2/3 in 2020/21 reducing to nil 
in 2021/22.  Eastleigh was the last Council within the County to make any of this 
grant funding available to parishes.  Since the introduction of the grant in 2013, 
parishes have received funding from the Council in excess of £1M.  The 
removal of this funding has enabled a saving of £70,520 in 2019/20, increasing 
to £127,000 in 2020/21. 

 
18. The Tree Works budget is reporting £20,000 additional necessary spend due to 

maintenance work that has been identified by the team. Growth will continue 
into the future at this level.  Focus is being given to ensuring an up to date Tree 
Risk Management plan is in place for all countryside sites and a complete audit 
of all countryside sites (including smaller nature reserves) is undertaken with 
proactive countryside site inspections programmed in and recorded regularly to 
ensure safety. The results of this plan will identify the potential for any further 
costs in the future.  The Medium Term Financial Plan also highlighted the need 
for an additional Tree Officer at a growth of £50,000 from 2020/21.  These costs 
will be funded from Special Expenses within the Council Tax charge to 
recognise the enhanced service provision in each parish. 

 
19. Funding has been allocated to deliver the programme of continuous 

improvement which was started by the Future Eastleigh programme.  The 
highest priority at the moment is to ensure the delivery of Case Management as 
the single delivery method of services both internally and externally.  This is a 

28



critical step, without which the Council cannot fully achieve the efficiency 
savings identified through Future Eastleigh.  The funding is supporting 
additional temporary posts to roll out the Council wide system including training 
and project management resources.  In 2019/20 this sum was £149,180 and in 
2020/21 a total of £350,000 has been added to the budget. 

 
20. Additional £100,000 funding for Pollution & Ecology Officers - the Council has 

already signalled its priority attached to addressing the Climate and 
Environmental Emergency.  An action plan is now in development, which will 
identify any likely resources required including staffing, communications and 
engagement and Council and community projects. 

 
21. Efficiency - The Medium Term Financial Plan approved at Council in October 

2019 introduced an emerging Efficiency Strategy to address continuing financial 
pressures into the longer term.  Although the Council is currently in a strong 
financial position there will continue to be emphasis on the minimising of costs 
and maximising of income to enable this financially stable position to continue. 
The £200,000 saving target for 2019/20 has been met from the Services 
savings described in this report.  The savings target for 2020/21 requires an 
additional £300,000.  

 
22. As highlighted in the Medium Term Financial Plan this budget includes the 

additional inflationary cost associated with Staffing (Pension, Pay Award and 
National Insurance etc) and inflation obligations in any service contracts. This is 
a budget pressure of £903,110 from 2020/21.  

 
23. Support Services is forecasting a £61,000 underspend in 2019/20 

predominantly due to staff vacancies. This is currently under review with 
vacancies due to be filled and is not materially impacting performance. 

 
24. Due to increasing statutory demands on both the External Auditor and the 

Council an increased level of audit activity in excess of the baseline audit fee is 
required. This sum is estimated to be an ongoing increase of £20,000 per 
annum. 

 
25.  As previously approved following consultation, capital improvement works are 

now underway at Hiltingbury Lakes.  As a result of this work additional £10,000 
annual maintenance is required to maintain the lakes at the improved level for 
the community.  

 
26. The development of the Mercury Library and Community Hub was successfully 

completed in 2019/20 and is now open for use.  The operation has been running 
for a number of months, the full running costs can be refined.  An additional 
£10,000 per annum is required to ensure the delivery of a high level of service 

29



to the public.  This cost is to be funded from Special Expenses within the 
Council Tax. 

 
27. An additional £1.5M income has been added to the budget in-line with the 

business plan for rental on the Council’s housing developments.  This is 
predominantly for the Stoneham site which will be fully developed in 2020/21. 

 
28. A strategic priority highlight within the Medium Term Financial Plan was the 

improvement of enforcement and control of Fly-tipping.  £60,000 has been 
added to the budget to fund new initiatives being developed by the Strategic 
Planning lead (Environment) and Service Leads. 

 
29. The Pension Actuary has issued a revised valuation from 2020/21 which has 

resulted in a potential budget reduction of £1.4M.  The impact of future fund 
valuations and increased contribution rates are still being assessed and 
therefore this sum is currently reserved to mitigate for future risks.  

 
30. An additional £15,000 has been added to the Community Safety Service to 

enable continued employment of a Community Safety Officer. This is to be 
funded from Special Expenses proportionately across the areas receiving the 
enhanced service.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

30



 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31



Original Rolling Actual Budget

Budget Budget Dec-19 Remaining

2019/20 2019/20 2019/20

PROGRAMME BOARD £ £ £ £

Housing 56,724,000             35,893,000 15,995,000 19,898,000

Future Eastleigh Service Redesign 75,000                    904,000 246,000 658,000

Infrastructure 2,670,000               4,214,000 1,467,000 2,747,000

Commercial Property -                          -                          -                          -                          

Leisure -                          594,000 116,000 478,000

Regeneration 13,949,000             4,267,000 579,000 3,688,000

LAC - Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & Horton Heath 2,223,000               577,000 44,000 533,000

LAC - Bursledon, Hamble & Hound 129,000                  369,000 156,000 213,000

LAC - Chandler's Ford & Hiltingbury 147,000                  353,000 11,000 342,000

LAC - Eastleigh 39,000                    6,852,000 3,795,000 3,057,000

LAC - Hedge End, West End & Botley 1,012,000               1,834,000 407,000 1,427,000

76,968,000 55,857,000 22,816,000 33,041,000

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

QUARTER 3 - 2019/20
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 D

32



Appendix E 

  

 
 

 
 
Financial Services Unit 
 
Our Ref:  SK/PS/Ctax 
Your Ref:  
Contact:  Sarah King 
Direct Dial:  023 8068 8011 
Direct Fax:   
Email:  sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk

 
6 December 2019 
 
Dear Sir 
 

CONSULTATION WITH THE BUSINESS COMMUNITY REGARDING GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE BUDGET AND NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR) FOR THE 

FORTHCOMING YEAR 2020/21 
 
In accordance with general yearly requirements I write offering you the opportunity of 
consultation on Eastleigh Borough Council’s General Fund Budget and associated Business 
Rate charges for the year 2020/21.   
 
A copy of the committee report to be presented to the Council’s Cabinet Members, detailing 
the Budget and general proposals for the year 2020/21 will be found on our website 
www.eastleigh.gov.uk following the Cabinet meeting which will take place on Tuesday 18 
February 2020.   
 
The two business rate multipliers applicable for 2020/21 (which are provisional at the current 
time): 
 
1). the small business non-domestic rating multiplier of 49.9 pence is applicable to 

those that qualify for the small business relief and 
 
2). the non-domestic rating multiplier of 51.2pence. 
 
The Government sets the NNDR rate and the Council is merely reporting this matter to you.  
Full details of the revaluation process and calculators for rateable values can be found on the 
following government website, https://www.gov.uk/introduction-to-business-rates/revaluation. 
 
Full Council will make a decision on the level of Council Tax on Thursday 20 February 2020. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Sarah King 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR SUPPORT SERVICES 
& CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

33



APPENDIX F 

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET 2020/21 – RISK ASSESSMENT 

Please note: 
The probability (prob) and impact (imp) of identified risks adversely affecting the Budget are each addressed on a scale of 1 to 5, 
where 1 = very low, 2 = low, 3 = medium, 4 = high and 5 = very high. 

Risk 2020/21 Future Comments 
 Prob Imp Prob Imp  
i Council Tax increase is less than inflation into future 

years 
5 1 5 1 It is very likely that the existing policy will 

remain in place. The implication is that costs 
will rise by inflation but Council Tax increases 
will be 1% below inflation. This policy is 
recognised in the Budget and modelled through 
the Medium Term Financial Plan and is 
therefore actively managed.  

ii General Fund Reserve balances less than £1M.  1 2 2 2 Balances are forecast to be in excess of the 
£1M minimum in the medium term.  However, 
given the uncertainty around Business Rates 
funding and national economic events outside 
of the Council’s control, there is a risk of the 
reserve falling below this level in future years. 
This is mitigated because Net Revenue Spend 
is budgeted to fall, therefore the balance 
required diminishes.  Sound financial planning 
with a robust Medium Term Financial Plan 
gives time for the Council to plan and react. 

iii Impact of new legislation and Government initiatives. 3 4 5 4 There are regular changes to legislation that 
may result in additional financial implications 
for the Council. To mitigate, these corporate 
risks are reviewed formally by Management 
Team on a regular basis.  

iv Failure to achieve Continuous Improvement Strategy 
target 

1 1 2 3 The Strategy has been launched early to give 
as much time as possible to achieve. The 
process will be closely monitored to ensure we 
can reflect targets accordingly.

34



APPENDIX F 

 
Risk 2020/21 Future Comments 

 Prob Imp Prob Imp  
v Increase in interest rates beyond budget estimates 1 3 2 4 The Council has a high level of borrowing so an 

increase in interest rates will have an impact on 
revenue costs. The Council takes professional 
treasury advice and will amend the borrowing 
profile to minimise borrowing costs.  The 
Council also budgets to reserve significant 
sums in an interest reserve should rates 
increase more quickly than forecast. 

vi Significant service income generated does not meet 
Budget target 

2 2 2 3 The Council has relatively few high income 
earners but is vulnerable to a downturn in Car 
Parking, Planning and Land Charges fees. To 
mitigate, all income targets are regularly 
monitored with Budget Holders so that relevant, 
timely action can be undertaken.

vii Increased void levels in high value rental properties 2 3 3 4 The current market is volatile and loss of 
larger tenants could have a significant 
budgetary impact. To mitigate, Asset 
Management manages property on a 
portfolio basis. Leases are reviewed so that 
new tenants can be sourced therefore 
income reductions are kept to a minimum.

viii Local Plan not being adopted  1 4 N/A N/A Impact of non-adoption of the Local Plan 
would put significant pressure on the 
Revenue Budget. 

ix Negative impact of exiting the European Union 4 5 4 5 The Council is taking steps to analyse 
potential impact through an officer and 
partner working group and will mitigate where 
possible.

 

35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix G

Service Performance 
Report

April – December 
2019

37



Council Strategy Scorecard Summary - 2019/20 Quarter 3   

Rag Status History

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

1.1 Percentage of waste recycled in Eastleigh Borough
1.2 Kilograms of domestic residual waste collected per household

1.3
Nitrogen dioxide concentration at monitoring site with highest levels (average of 12 months to 
date, ug/m3)

1.4 Number of missed bin collections
1.5 Percentage of fly tipping completed on time 
1.6 Land Audit Management System score.  % of inspections with C rating (unacceptable)

2.1 Occupancy Levels at Eastleigh Business Centre
2.2 Number of businesses supported
2.3 Number of businesses paying rates

3.1 Total attendance (average by quarter at The Point & Berry Theatres) 
3.2 Increased visitor numbers at Country Parks
3.3 Total visits per quarter to Places Leisure Eastleigh
3.4 Attendance sessions Health Works and Sport Works
3.5 The number of homeless cases prevented through intervention of housing advice
3.6 Time taken to process Housing Benefit (average by quarter)

3.7
% of complex DFGs completed within 300 days (% of all completed DFGs that were complex 
adaptations)

4.1 Number of affordable units funded by New Home Bonus
4.2 Number of planning applications processed within statutory targets
4.3 Number of net additional homes per annum, in accordance with the Local Plan targets

38



3

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

 5.1 Customer complaints
5.2 % of all customer interactions (calls) resolved at first point of contact
5.3 Average number of calls handled per working day by CSC
5.4 Corporate sickness  (average number of days lost per person)
5.5 Staff turnover (number of people resigned/headcount)
5.6 % of corporate complaints outside SLA of 18 working days response time
5.7 % of FOI / EIR requests responded to within SLA
5.8 CSC - % of calls answered vs offered
5.9 Total number of households on housing register

5.10 Average waiting time in months for properties in band 2 and 3
5.11 % of planning appeals allowed as % of all planning application decisions

This quarter a new approach has been adopted for reporting key performance indicators; using improved data visualisation to show the 
organisation’s most strategic indicators, which are now organised into strategic themes. The data shows a stable performance picture when 
comparing this quarter to last with the majority of KPIs remaining the same red, amber, green (RAG) status as last quarter.  When looking 
at our health and wellbeing theme, specifically numbers of visitors to Places Leisure, there is an improved picture compared to Q2. 
Corporately there is also an improved picture in terms of the percentage of Freedom of Information and EIR requests responded to on time, 
with this quarter turning green.       

    

39



Greener Borough (Environment)

1.1 Percentage of waste recycled in Eastleigh Borough
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (Average) Q2 (Average) Q3* (Average)
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2019/20
Benchmark: 45%

National target 50% 
by 2025

This quarter 
showing as

AMBER

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
43.4% 43.4% 43.4% 45.2% 45.2% 45.2% 42.8% 43.4%

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

Despite the expected seasonal reduction in tonnages of garden waste collected through Autumn, the 
November figure is 1.7% up compared to last year and 1.3% up on the financial year to date. Overall 
performance continues to be positive when compared with last financial year; this is in part due to the 
increased food waste tonnage collected. The positive trend compared to 19/20 figures is expected to continue 
for the remainder of the financial year.

1.2 Kilograms of domestic residual waste collected per household
A high 

number is 
POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (Actual) Q2 (Actual) Q3 (Actual)* 
104

106

108

110

112

2019/20 Benchmark: 
440kgs per 

year/ 110kgs 
per quarter

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

 Q1 (Actual) Q2 (Actual) Q3 (Actual)* 
2019/20 110 106 108

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

Collections of domestic residual waste by kilogram per household is down compared to the figure at the 
corresponding time last year and is projected to show a small decrease in the year overall. The success of the 
food waste project, with record levels of food waste tonnages, is having a positive impact on this indicator as it 
cuts the waste put in household waste bins. It should be noted that this is perhaps the most important of all 
waste indicators as it sits at the top of the waste hierarchy and impacts directly on service cost.

40



5

1.3 Nitrogen dioxide concentration at monitoring site with highest levels 
(average of 12 months to date, ug/m3)

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (Actual) Q2 (Actual) Q3 (Actual)
36

36.5

37

37.5

38

38.5

39

39.5

40

2019/20

Benchmark: 
40 ug/m3

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
37.4 36.9 37.2 37.0 37.6 37.8 38.6 39.3 40.5

Performance deteriorated in December, although the timescale is very short in terms of meaningful 
commentary on air pollution levels. Monthly performance can vary significantly as a result of factors such as 
weather conditions. A much longer period (measured in years) of data would need to be considered to draw 
meaningful conclusions about air pollution trends.

1.4 Number of missed bin collections

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
0

50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
500

2019/20

Target <300

This quarter 
showing as

RED 

Last quarter 
showing as

RED 

There is no longer a national benchmark for this measure and therefore the missed bins target is set locally. 
Missed bins often result from access issues thoughtless parking and narrow road layouts. Access issues 
are particularly prevalent on newer housing developments.  

There are a number of systems upgrades underway which will give greater assurances around the data for 
this measure and also permit a re-baselining of the targets. Implementation of route optimisation software is 
currently underway and it is anticipated that the new rounds will be in place by late Spring 2020. This will 
support a full service review, which will consider service and operational design in the context of additional 
housing development and evolving waste streams.

41



6

1.5 Percentage of fly tipping collections completed on time
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (Average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

2019/20
Benchmark: 
95% - target 
time within 5 
working days 

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

Indicator has remained at 100% throughout 2019, although the number of incidents per month has varied 
from 38 to as high as 63.

1.6 Land Audit Management System score.  % of inspections with C rating 
(unacceptable)

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)
0%
1%
2%
3%
4%
5%
6%
7%
8%
9%

10%
Benchmark: 5% 

or less

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
6% 6% 7% 8% 1% 2% 0% 0% 0%

Figure improved due to additional borough-wide weed treatment and more focused approach to litter 
picking, particularly around known hot spots. Additionally more staff received training on Environmental 
Management System (EMS) inspection criteria, creating a greater understanding and more informed 
understanding of assessment criteria. 

42



7

Economy

2.1 Occupancy Levels at Eastleigh Business Centre
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3* (average)
50%
55%
60%
65%
70%
75%
80%
85%
90%
95%

100%

2019/20
Benchmark: 

84%

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

     GREEN 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
83% 86% 86% 86% 85% 84% 84% 89%

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures
Occupancy rate = number of tenants excluding Techhub and virtual. In the year 20/21 these occupancy 
rates will be re-evaluated and take into account the Techhub space which has now been repurposed. 
Figures rose in November as four new companies moved into Wessex House. However, performance may 
decrease during the next quarter as a number of tenants have expressed an intention to move out. This 
underlines the fluid nature of the centre. 

2.2 Number of businesses supported
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
0

50

100

150

2019/20
(CUMULATIVE TOTAL)

Benchmark: 
Annual target 
100 (baseline 
for 1st year)

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 
2019/20 0 6 45 47 53 57 57 120 129

*April data is not available.  In addition October was counted with November as most contact was in 
preparation for business breakfast
Supporting business includes: numbers that attend conferences or briefings, grants awarded, visits and 
meetings to discuss specific requests from local companies, queries handled through Platform 4 Business 
(W House), other activities for multiple beneficiaries (e.g. loyalty card for the BID would be one activity) If a 
company attends a seminar and applies for a grant, that would count as two activities. If a company is 
repeatedly visited for one project, that would count as one

43



8

2.3 Number of businesses paying rates
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Nov
0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Figures are currently only available for November, when there were 3,245 businesses registered for 
Business Rates. A final target is currently being considered and will be published shortly.

Health and Wellbeing

3.1 Total Attendance (average by quarter at The Point & Berry Theatres)
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (Average) Q2 (Average) Q3 (Average)
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

2019/20
Benchmark: 

50%
National 

Average: 51% 

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

73% 48% 66% 55% 47% 72% 47% 52% 76%

44



9

The KPI reports the percentage of seats utilised across the whole show portfolio. The Point and Berry have 
seen a reduction in visitor numbers in October and November (average) compared to 
July/August/September. This was expected as capital works were being undertaken on our studio space in 
order to create space dedicated to children, families and young people. This reduced the space available for 
programming although it has now been completed. As an aspirational target was put in for 2019/20 based on 
the National average % occupancy of 51% in 2017 for similar venues (according to UK Theatre Sales data 
and Headlines report 2017). The total across both venues rose from 44% to 48% in 2018/19 but the film 
programme was having a negative impact on occupancy rates. The target of 50% will be reviewed once all 
occupancy figures for 2020/21 are in.This was the first year performance was measured amid significant 
restructure, business improvement and audience development. There are imminent changes to the 
programming profile for 2020/21 where protocols around processes are changing. Programming works in 
cycles (spring, autumn and winter) and is tracked across the year in line with the International way of working 
for theatres.

3.2 Visitor numbers at Country Parks
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 Q2 Q3
0

5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
45,000

2019/20 2018/19

2019/20 YTD 
has seen an 
increase of 

56,000 visitors 
from 2018/19

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
2019/20 25,205 22,350 19,115 24,490 28,888 24,507 18,625 12,790
2018/19 17,377 19,432 18,912 22,182 27,657 19,270 21,687 12,490

*The graph details a 3 month average.  *December data is not available within the Q3 figures

 Country Parks has seen a continued increase in visitor numbers in 2019/20 compared to 2018/19. The table 
above shows a slight reduction in October visitor numbers compared to last year.  Another factor for rising 
visitor numbers was the installation of the new cafe and initiatives held there to attract visitors. Income for the 
park/cafe was particularly high for the last 2 weeks of August against target. Main peak was over bank 
holiday weekend with a mobile farm event booked for the last week of August. The overflow car park, new 
for 2019, gave an additional 120 spaces to the park and queue management into the park was improved. In 
general visitor numbers and income have exceeded targets each month during this quarter with the cafe and 
planned activities/trails successful and well supported.

45



10

3.3 Total visits per quarter to Places Leisure Eastleigh
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 Q2 Q3
80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

2019/20
Benchmark: 
1,150,000 
Visits per 

annum (based 
on last 2 year 
average since 

building 
opened)

This quarter 
showing as

AMBER 

Last quarter 
showing as

RED

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
2019/20 99,195 93,385 94,250 92,446 87,030 79,585 100,452 95,188

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

The figure for September was artificially low due to the disabled gate being removed for 3 weeks in 
September, resulting in people not scanning to access centre.  

Based on previous experience, we would expect a reduction in numbers for December which will be offset 
with increasing rates in January, February and March which is traditionally the busiest time of the year. For 
the year 20/21 we will look to adjust quarterly targets to reflect seasonal pressures. 

3.4 Attendance sessions Health Works and Sport Works
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 Q2 Q3
0

1000
2000
3000
4000
5000
6000

2019/20 Sportsworks 
annual target 

7,165 (597 per 
month)

This quarter 
showing as

AMBER

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
2019/20 283 324 325 750 3970 360 438 383

Health Works and Sport Works are set to achieve the annual target. The majority of attendance is in 
August (as shown in the table above) which is due to the highly popular Park Sports events that take 
place in the summer. For the year 20/21 we will look to adjust quarterly targets to reflect seasonal 
pressures.  

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

46



11

3.5 Number of homeless cases prevented through intervention of housing advice
A high 

number is 
POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)
0

5

10

15

20

25

2019/20
Benchmark: 

average of 16 
cases per 

month 

This quarter 
showing as

AMBER

Last quarter 
showing as

AMBER

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
2019/20 16 22 25 20 18 16 13 15 22

The figure we report for this KPI is households who have approached our service (either directly or via referral 
from another agency) as they are under threat of homelessness, are already homeless and where we have 
successfully managed to either prevent or relieve their homelessness (i.e. achieve a successful outcome).  If 
the figure drops it could mean we have successfully intervened earlier before clients reach this stage through 
the statutory framework. 

3.6 Time taken to process Housing Benefit (average by quarter)
A high 

number is 
POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)*
0
5

10
15
20
25
30

2019/20 22 days 
(average days 

based on South 
region average)

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
2019/20 24 24 23 23.2 19.6 19.2 21.7 17.88

The data shows a significant improvement in service performance during the 8 months in which information is 
available. A review and re-mapping of process has contributed to this together with structural changes within 
the team.

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

3.7 % of complex DFGs completed within 300 days (% of all completed DFGs that 

47



12

were complex adaptations)
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 Q2 Q3
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

2019/20
Benchmark: 

85%

This quarter 
showing as

RED

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

100.00% 100.00% 80.00% 100% 67% 100% 50% 100% 50.00%

Two out of the four DFGs completed over the 300-day target in October and gave us a RAG rating of red.  
One of the DFGs was completed in 303 days so, was fractionally just past the deadline.  The other DFG 
took over 500 days to complete as this was an incredibly complex case, which involved the redesign of 
extension and complex negotiations with the OT and family as to what the adaption would include.  Once 
this went through planning it took a lot of time to negotiate with HCC on funding the shortfall that could not 
be covered by the DFG. It should be noted that increasingly, DFG’s are becoming more complex as more 
children are being cared for within the home.

Housing

4.1 Number of affordable units funded by New Home Bonus
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
0

10

20

30

40

2019/20

Benchmark: 
Approx. 30 per 

year

Due to timing and completion of affordable units as well as efficient use of other funds, such as developers' 
contributions, there have been no affordable units funded from the New Homes Bonus in 2019/20.

4.2 Number of planning applications processed within statutory timeframes 

48



13

A high 
number is 

GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

Oc
t

N
ov

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

% (and number) of  
major applications 
processed within 13 
weeks or agreed 
time
% (and number) of 
minor applications 
processed within 8 
weeks or agreed 
time
% (and number) of 
other applications 
processed within 8 
weeks or agreed 
time

2019/20

Statutory 
Targets:        

Majors 60%            
Minors 65%                 

Non-statutory 
target          

Other 80%

This quarter 
showing as

Red for Minors

Last quarter 
showing as
Amber for 

Minors 

A total of 641 planning applications have been received (19 x major, 102 x minor and 510 x others). 
The YTD performance for decisions on major and non-major planning applications remains above 
target, with major applications (90% - target 60%) and non-major (88% - target 70%). However, 
approximately half of major applications and approximately a third of minor application have had 
their statutory decision timescale extended through Planning Performance Extensions (PPEs) in 
accordance with Government guidance. Performance on minor applications fell below the 65% 
target in October (58%) and November (55%). With the relatively low number of cases in these 
months, three schemes failed to meet the target decision date due to delays in decisions being 
made due the schemes being determined at committee. A further influencing factor was the 
resignation of 1 FTE Planning Officer during this period.”

4.3 Number of net additional homes per annum, in accordance with the Local 
Plan targets. 

49



14

A high 
number is 

GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

2019/20

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 * Quarter 4
0

50

100

150

200

250

300

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3* Quarter 4

237 248 0 0

*Q3 Data not yet available.

The target will be included in the Local plan but is not due for adoption until late 2020. 

Corporate

5.1 Customer complaints
A high 

number is 
POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0

10

20

30

40

50

2019/20
Benchmark: 
<35 a month

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov
21 55 29 12 52 24 26 25

*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

The number of formal complaints received tends to be lower in Q3 every year, but the Q3 figure has also 

50



15

improved because of changes made to the Council website, which help to distinguish between service 
requests and genuine complaints.

5.2 % of all customer interactions (calls) resolved at first point of contact
A high 

number is 
GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100% Benchmark: 
60%

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

61% 60% 60% 58% 63% 64% 61% 61% 65%

For much of the year the percentage of calls dealt with at first point of contact has remained steady at 
around the target level of 60%.

5.3 Average number of calls handled per working day by CSC

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2019/20

No target set 
(workload 

figure)

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

527 503 425 464 469 470 411 499 478

The average number of calls handled per working day over the course of the year has ranged from a low of 411 
in October to a peak of 527 in April. The figures are not a measure of performance, but of customer demand, 

51



16

so a target is not set. Higher call numbers are regularly expected in April due to the increased number of calls 
about Council Tax that result in the wake of annual billing.

5.4 Corporate sickness  (average number of days lost per person)
A high 

number is 
POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0.0
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0
5.0
6.0
7.0
8.0
9.0

10.0
2019/20

Benchmark: 
440kgs per 

year/ 110kgs 
per quarter

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

7.6 8.0 7.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 6.0

The figure for corporate sickness is slightly below average for the public sector and demonstrates robust 
management of sickness absence together with the increased support provided for employee wellbeing 
across the Council. 

5.5 Staff turnover (% of people resigned/headcount)

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0%
2%
4%
6%
8%

10%
12%
14%
16%
18%
20%

2019/20

Benchmark: 
<15%

This quarter 
showing as 

Green 

Last quarter 
showing as

Green

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

16% 15% 15% 13% 14% 14% 13% 15% 14%

There are a number of ways to calculate turnover and the method used is currently being reviewed to 
ensure the most relevant and accurate figure is being provided.  Turnover remains high across the Council 
and represents a key area of concern that is being looked into.

52



17

5.6 % of corporate complaints outside SLA

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

2019/20 Benchmark: 0% 
SLA = 18 working days 

response time

This quarter showing 
as 

RED

Last quarter showing 
as 

RED 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

63% 46% 43% 35% 68% 77% 60% 71%
*December data is not available within the Q3 figures

The number of complaints resolved outside of SLA has mainly fallen due to Waste and Recycling staff being 
trained to use Salesforce to process complaints (which has reduced the staff cost of each complaint from £74 
to £13). Support given to the Pollution team has also improved their handling of complaints.

5.7 % of FOI / EIR requests responded to within SLA

A high 
number is 

GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average) 
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Benchmark: 
90% 

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

RED

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

74% 75% 78% 75% 78% 98% 100% 91% 96%

The response rate has improved following a change of policy in the internal collecting of FOI / EIR data in 
September 2019, which stipulated that an email reminder would be copied to the relevant member of staff’s 
operational manager after 5 days and to their corporate manager after 15 days. Staff have responded well 
to these changes by working hard to quickly provide the requested information.

5.8 CSC - % of calls answered vs offered

53



18

A high 
number is 

GOOD

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100% Benchmark: Q1 
80%; Q2 to Q3 

85% 

This quarter 
showing as

AMBER 

Last quarter 
showing as

AMBER

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

79% 80% 83% 85% 81% 83% 88% 79% 80%

For most of the year, the percentage of calls answered has tended to fall slightly short of the target of 85% and 
is principally affected by the volume of calls coming in, although unplanned absence due to sickness 
sometimes has a significant impact.

5.9 Total number of households on housing register

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)
0

200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000

Benchmark: No 
target as 

dependent on 
applications, 
eligibility etc. 
Average for 

2018/19 was 
1,845

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1830 1704 1698 1731 1752 1755 1781 1798 1820

The number of households on the housing register is mainly affected by factors outside the control of the 
Council, such as the number of households who choose to submit applications, whether they meet the 
eligibility criteria and the availability of suitable properties at the time.

5.10 Average waiting time in months for properties in band 2 and 3

54



19

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0

10

20

30

40

2019/20
Benchmark: 
No specific 

target. 
Average from 
2018/18 was 
36.7  months

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 
32.7 32.4 31.9 31.8 31.6 31.9 31.0 30.0 29.6

The average waiting time is mainly affected by factors outside the control of the Council, such as the number 
of eligible applicants, the availability of suitable properties, and the extent to which the various external 
organisations providing figures to the Council have fully updated these figures.

5.11 % of planning appeals allowed as % of all planning application decisions

A high 
number is 

POOR

Preferred 
direction of 

travel

Q1 (average) Q2 (average) Q3 (average)* 
0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Benchmark: 
10%

This quarter 
showing as

GREEN 

Last quarter 
showing as

GREEN

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

1.5% 1.6% 0.0% 0.0% 2.7% 1.8% 0.0% 0.0% 4.7%

The low percentage of decisions allowed at appeal is a reflection on the quality of decisions being made by the 
Development Management Team which are supported by the Planning Inspectorate.

55



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL
FORWARD PLAN: January 2020 to April 2020

This Forward Plan sets out matters which may be considered by Cabinet in the four month period. It includes items on which a “key 
decision” is likely to be taken.

A KEY DECISION IS - An executive decision (whether or not taken by the Cabinet) which is likely to:

(1) result in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which amount to either £50,000 or 20% (whichever is the 
larger) of the gross expenditure budget for the service or general function to which the decision relates; or

(2) be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards within the 
Borough of Eastleigh.

The Plan also includes matters for likely decision relating to the Council’s policy or budget framework.

KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

18 February 2020

57

A
genda Item

 7



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

2

Yes Adoption of the Eastleigh 
Borough Council Air Quality 
Action Plan 2020-2025 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

The Cabinet will be asked to 
approve the adoption of the 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Air Quality Action Plan 
(AQAP), which sets out a 
collection of actions aimed at 
improving air quality across 
the Borough and particularly 
focuses on the Air Quality 
Management Areas 
(AQMAs). The AQAP is a 
Department of Environment, 
Food and Rural Affairs 
(DEFRA) requirement and 
replaces previous AQAPs 
that covered the Eastleigh 
Borough AQMAs. 

Cali Sparks, 
Sustainable 
Transport Senior 
Specialist / 
Cabinet Member 
for Environment

Yes Council Tax Care Leavers 
Policy 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  Cabinet will be asked to 
approve a policy to reduce 
the burden of council tax for 
care leavers.

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 

Yes 2020 - 2021 Borough Council 
Budget 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  All Pre Decision 
Scrutinies

To consider and recommend 
the 2020 – 2021 Borough 
Council Budget to Council for 
approval.

Sarah King, 
Corporate 
Director - 
Support Services 
/ 

58



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

3

Yes Capital and Treasury Strategy Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

To consider and approve the 
Capital and Treasury 
Strategy.

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Treasury Management Half 
Year Report 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

To consider and approve the 
Treasury Management Half 
Year report.

Andy Smith, 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 
(Deputy Chief 
Financial Officer) 
/ 

Yes Corporate Performance & 
Financial Monitoring 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

To consider the quarterly 
report outlining the Council’s 
performance against 
outcomes in the Corporate 
Plan.

Gaetana 
Wiseman, Head 
of Performance 
and Governance 
/ 

Yes Asset Management Strategy Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  Audit & 
Resources 
Committee

Cabinet will be asked to 
consider the Council’s 
proposed Asset 
Management Strategy which 
considers the Council’s 
approach to managing 
property assets.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

Yes Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval 

Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP).

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

59



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

4

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  18 Feb 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

19 March 2020

Yes Nitrate Neutrality Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  Policy & 
Performance 
Scrutiny Panel

This is the Borough Council’s 
short to medium term 
strategy to deliver nitrate 
neutrality for future 
development proposals. The 
Action Plan will set out 
options on how to mitigate 
increased nitrates as a result 
of additional housing 
development. 

 / 

Yes Community Investment 
Programme Scheme(s) 
Approval 

Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  To consider and approve 
projects within the 
Community Investment 
Programme (CIP).

Tom Andrews, 
Finance 
Specialist / 

Yes Property Transactions Cabinet  19 Mar 2020  To consider and approve 
property transactions.

Liz Suatt, Lead 
Asset Manager / 

FOOTNOTES:
Public Participation will apply to enable representations to be made at the time the decision is to be taken.
Written reports for public items will be available as part of the agenda papers and are usually available one week prior to 
the meeting.

Contact Officer: Laura Johnston – Lead Specialist – Democratic Services
Publication Date: 28 January 2020

60



KEY ITEM TO BE 
TAKEN BY

DATE 
DECISION TO 

BE TAKEN

PRE-DECISION
SCRUTINY

DESCRIPTION Contact Officer / 
Cabinet Member

5

61



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel – 2019/20

History
Date Author Comments

2 Jan 2020 RG Updated following cancelled sessions, based on discussions between NW, DB and RG in November

Work Programme
Date of 
Meeting

Item for Consideration Focus for Scrutiny Additional Attendance 
By

MAY
30/05

Parking Policy Pre-decision scrutiny Jason Light

JUL
10/07

Environment Portfolio (1)
Climate Change & 
Biodiversity

Cllr Kyrle

Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring Report

Gaetana Wiseman/Andy 
Smith

Homelessness Prevention 
Strategy

Ross McClean

SEP
05/09

Transport Portfolio Cllr Airey

63

A
genda Item

 8



OCT
22/10

Environment Portfolio (2)
Waste & Recycling

Scrutiny of Performance and Policy; inc plans for waste 
collection in new developments 

Cllr Kyrle
Paul Naylor

Recycling Paul Naylor

Climate Change Strategy & 
Action Plan

Pre-decision scrutiny Jason Light

Residents Survey Diccon Bright/Jade Mizen
Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring Report

Gaetana Wiseman/Andy 
Smith

NOV
18/11

Health & Wellbeing 
Portfolio
Review of Places Leisure Performance against original success criteria, future plans, 

impact on health and wellbeing
Janine Pickering/Ross 
McClean

Staff turnover and other HR 
issues

DEC
09/12

Social Policy/Tackling 
Deprivation Portfolio

Cllr Campbell
Ross McClean

Houses in Multiple 
Occupation

Ross McClean

Eastleigh Borough Council’s 
Air Quality Action Plan

To scrutinise results of consultation on EBCs new Air Quality 
Action Plan ahead of Cabinet decision in January 2020.

Cali Sparks/Isabel 
Hessey

JAN
22/01/20

Air Quality To review the air quality action plan and make 
recommendations to Cabinet
(Must be first item!)

Cali Sparkes
Isabel Hessey

64



Planning Enforcement To review performance of the planning enforcement function, 
including impact of staffing changes in 2018/19

Andy Grandfield
Phil Wiseman

Enforcement Strategy To review the overall enforcement strategy and make 
recommendations to officers and/or Cabinet

Diccon Bright

JAN
30/01/20

Community Safety Review To review the performance of the CS Partnership Melvin Hartley

Sustainable Transport 
Strategy (Cycling & Walking)

To review the STP and make recommendations to officers 
and/or Cabinet

Cali Sparks

Additional: Scrutiny improvement workshop to follow up on CfPS training

FEB
06/02/20

General Fund Budget To scrutinise the budget Sarah King

Quarterly Corporate & 
Financial Monitoring Report

Gaetana Wiseman/Andy 
Smith

MAR
12/03/20

Social Policy and Health & 
Wellbeing 

Task and Finish Group reports and recommendations
 Incorporate HMOs

Training to inform?
Housing Discussion to determine focus of T&F group

Training to inform?
Corporate Action Plan Diccon Bright

Additional: Programme planning workshop

Items for 
2020/21

Community Safety Review

65



Quarterly Corporate & Financial Monitoring Report (3rd week of June 2020)

Asset Management Strategy

66


	Agenda
	6 General Fund Revenue Budget 2020/21 and Performance Monitoring to 31 December 2019
	Budget Report - Appendix 1
	20-21 Budget Cabinet report
	Appendix 1
	Budget Report - Appendix A - General Fund Summary
	Budget Report - Appendix B - Budget Reconciliation
	Budget Report - Appendix C - Revenue Service Table of Growth and Commentary
	Budget Report - Appendix D - CIP
	Budget Report - Appendix E - Consultation Letter
	Budget Report - Appendix F - Risk Log


	Budget Report - Appendix 2 - Performance Reporting (P&P)

	7 Cabinet Forward Plan
	8 Policy and Performance Scrutiny Panel's Work Programme

